Capsule Summary

SM-151

Robert L. Lacey House

Chaptico vicinity

Private Circa 1850 -1860

The Robert L. Lacey House is significant as an example of modest mid-
nineteenth century rural architecture. This one-and-a-half story structure has a center
hall, single pile plan. Although the exterior is now sheathed with artificial siding, its
original weatherboard siding survives underneath the modern sheathing. Few of its
original interior finishes have survived. The late nineteenth century tobacco barn and
upright sword prize located on the property are also of interest.

This house was probably built by a tenant of either Richard P. Blakistone or
Colonel John F. Dent. Robert L. Lacey purchased 108.84 acres of Dent’s portion of
“Hayden’s Fair” and “Phil Key’s Land” in 1888 which he farmed until his death in 1905.
Under Rose E. Hill's ownership, the one-story addition and shed roof dormers were

added to the house.




SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’'s County
Maryland Comprehensive State Historic Preservation Plan Data

Historic Context
Geographic Organization: Western Shore

Chronological/Developmental Period: Agricultural/industrial Transition, 1815 -1870.

Historic Period Theme: Architecture
Agriculture

Resource Type

Category: Building
Historic Environment: Rural
Historic Function and Use: Residence

Known Design Source: None




Survey No.

VAR SM-151
MARYLAND INVENTORY 0 :
. . i o F Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust . .,.-- PROERTIES
. . . ! Y i g N

State Historic Sites Inventory Forim DOE _yes _ mno
1. Name {indicate preferred name)
historic Robert L. Lacey House
and/or common Reeves House
2. Location
street & number Hurryfhaptico Road ____not for publication
city, town Chaptico X vicinity of congressional district 5
state Maryland county St. Mary's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
. district — public ____occupied ____ agriculture ____ museum
__Xbuilding(s) __X_private _ X unoccupied ____ commercial ____park
— structure _ both —_ work in progress __ educational ___ private residence
____ site Public Acquisition Accessible ____ entertainment —religious

—_ object —_in process _ 2 yes: restricted —_ government ___ scientific

—— being considered __ yes: unrestricted ___industrial transportation
__Xnot applicable ___ po ___ military _X other:none

q. Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Stephen Thomas Reeves
street & number  [-0. Box 959 telephone no.3017884-0112
city, town Mechanicsville state and zip code Md
5. Location of Legal Description
. Clerk of Court EWA 734
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. liber
St. Mary's County Courthouse 335
street & number folio
Leonardtown MD.
city, town state

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

titie

date ——federal ____state __county ____ local

+pository for survey records

city, town state




7- Description Survey No. Sm—151

Condition Check one Check one

—_ excellent _X deteriorated ___ unaltered _X_ original site
— good —ruins __ Xaltered —_ moved date of move
__ fair —___unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Contributing Resource Count: 2

The Robert L. Lacey House is located at the end of a dirt road on the west side
of the Chaptico-Hurry Road between Hurry and Chaptico in St. Mary’'s County,
Maryland. Three small gable roofed outbuildings stand to the south of the structure
and one tobacco barn stands to the north of the house. Cultivated fields extend on all
sides of the building. The house faces east with the principal gable oriented on a
north/south axis.

Constructed around 1850, the house is comprised of a one-and-a-half story,
three-bay main block with a one-story, two-bay addition on the southern end. The
house is sheathed with asbestos shingle and vinyt siding. The roof is covered with
corrugated metal. Underneath the house, the floor joists are skinned logs which rest
on stone piers.

The east elevation is sheltered by a shed roof porch with a metal roof supported
by turned posts. The porch ceiling has been removed, but the wood porch floor
survives. Above the old ceiling level, the house’s original weatherboard siding
attached with mature machine cut nails is visible. The facade of the house is pierced
by a central partially glazed entrance door flanked by one two-over-two sash window
on the north side and one two-over-six sash window with paneled shutters. Two shed
roof dormers lit by six-over-six sash windows light the house’s upper half story. These
dormers were added in the early twentieth century. The southern addition is pierced
by a partially glazed entrance door and one two-over-two sash window with a paneled
shutter.

The south elevation of the main block is largely obscured by the one-story,
southern addition. An exterior brick chimney stands against this flush gable end, and
a window opening lights the eave to the west of the chimney. The addition is lit by a
bank of two-over-two sash windows with wide, flat surrounds. A shed roof addition
sheathed with German siding extends to the west of the earlier southern wing. This
addition is pierced by a four-light-over-three-panel door with narrow surrounds.

The west elevation of the southern addition is pierced by two window openings.
The north side of the addition is pierced by one six-over-six sash window. The main
block of the house is finished with a boxed cornice and pierced by two window
openings, one of which was a six-over-six sash window and one of which was a two-
over-two sash window.

The north elevation of the main block is blind except for a window opening at
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8. Significance Survey No.  SM-151

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion
—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation — law ___ science
1500-1599 _ X agriculture ____economics — literature — sculpture
—1600-1699 _ X architecture — education ___ military —_soclal/
—1700-1799 ____art —_engineering — muslc humanitarian
_X 1800-1899 ____ commerce — exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater
— 1900 ____ communications — industry ___politics/government ____ transportation
— invention — other (specify)
Specific dates unknown Builder/Architect unknown
check: Applicable Criteria: __ A B XC D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C D _E _F G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Robert L. Lacey House is significant as an example of modest mid-
nineteenth century rural architecture. This one-and-a-half story structure has a center
hall, single pile plan. Although the exterior is now sheathed with artificial siding, its
original weatherboard siding survives underneath the modern sheathing. Few of its
original interior finishes have survived. The late nineteenth century tobacco barn and
upright sword prize located on the property are also of interest.

This house was probably built by a tenant of either Richard P. Blakistone or
Colonel John F. Dent. Robert L. Lacey purchased 108.84 acres of Dent'’s portion of
“Hayden’s Fair” and “Phil Key’s Land” in 1888 which he farmed until his death in 1905.
Under Rose E. Hill's ownership, the one-story addition and shed roof dormers were
added to the house.

The house is currently unoccupied and in poor repair.

B e — —



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. SM-151

Joseph Norris Jr., Personal Interview. November 1993
George B. Reeves, Personal Interview. April 1904

10. Geographical Data

2 Acres
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List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
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11. Form Prepared By

name/title Elizabeth Hughes, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization St, Mary's County DPZ date February 1994
street & number telephone 301-475-4662
city or town Leonardtown state Md.

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.
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SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’s County
7.1 Description

the upper half story which has been boarded over. An exterior brick chimney stands
against this flush gable end which is sheathed with asbestos shingle siding and
finished with a plain eave board.

The interior plan of the house consists of a center hall flanked on either side by
a parlor accessible behind a four-panel door with a plain, beaded surround. Mantels
survive in both parlors. These mantels consist of fluted pilasters which end in a
scrolling bracket which supports the mantel shelf. Underneath the mantel shelf is a
strip of scalloped edging. At the end of the central entrance hall is an enclosed
winder stair leading to the upper half story of the house. A vertical panel door opens to
a small closet under the stair. The interior walls of the winder stair are sheathed with
board and batten siding. The upper half story of the house consists of two rooms
which retain none of their original finishes.

All three outbuildings on the property are gable roof structures facing north with
their roof on a north/south axis. These structures stand on the south side of the house
and are in poor repair. One of these is sheathed with weatherboard siding and roofed
with corrugated metal. A second outbuilding is sheathed with tar paper over vertical
siding and roofed with metal. The third outbuilding, located closest to the house, is
sheathed with plywood and weatherboard siding and roofed with metal. A F. E. Myers
and Bro. Co. hand pump, made in Shland, Ohio, stands on the southeast side of the
house.

A tobacco barn dating to the late nineteenth century is located about 500 feet
north of the house. The barn is rectangular in form, measuring 20 feet by 60 feet with a
16 foot shed on the south side. The barn’s gable roof is oriented on an east/west axis.
This structure is sheathed with vertical board siding and roofed with metal.

The organizational plan of the barn consists of an 8 foot bay system with 4 foot
rooms. Two six-room sections of the barn are separated by a central aisle. A double
door entrance which opens onto this aisle is the principal opening on the barn’'s north
side. The shed is almost completely open on the south elevation, although the
southwestern corner of the barn is partially enclosed. An upright tobacco prize is
located in this southwest corner of the barn’s shed.

The structural system of the barn consists of circular sawn ground sills which
rest on stone piers. The sills are mortise and tenoned together and reinforced with
wooden pegs. The framing system consists of principal posts on four foot centers with
supports on two foot centers. The corner posts are reinforced with down braces. The
roof is a common rafter roof on four foot centers. The system used to hang tobacco
consists of horizontal rails which have been nailed to the interior face of the four walls




SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’'s County
7.2 Description

of the barn. In addition, intermediate tier pole supports run longitudinally down the
center of the barn. At each tier pole level, one tier pole extends horizontally from the
northern wall of the barn in a transverse row across the interior space through a hole
in the intermediate vertical support and across to the barn’s southern wall. These tier
poles provide support for the sticks of tobacco.

The shed on the barn’s south elevation is organized on roughly the same bay
system as the structure’s main block. The shed is supported by a series of vertical
posts which rest on concrete blocks. The south side of the shed is largely open as the
vertical siding extends only about a quarter of the way down the elevation.




SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’s County
8.1 Significance

Chain of Title

TO: Stephen Thomas Reeves

FROM: George B. Reeves and Willma M. Reeves

RECORD: St. Mary’s County Land Records, Liber EWA 734, folio 335.

DATE: December 7, 1992.

NOTES: Transfer of Hayden's Fair and Keys Purchase, being 108 acres. A series of
other properties are also transfered in this deed.

TO: George B. Reeves and Willma M. Reeves

FROM: Joseph Elmer Norris ad Mary Ora Norris

RECORD: St. Mary's County Land Record, Liber CBG 60, folio 69.
DATE: October 28, 1955

NOTES: Transfer of land described in CBG 44/440 except 11.62 acres.

TO: Joseph Elmer Norris and Mary Ora Norris

FROM: Rose E. Hill

RECORD: St. Mary’s County Land Record, Liber CBG 44, folio 440.

DATE: May 29, 1953.

NOTES: Transfer of tract known as “Hayden’s Fair” or “Phil Keys” surveyed by George
B. Dent in 1887. Being 108.84 acres, the same as JFF 10/459 except CBG 30/268 and
CBG 20/91. Being also the same land with exceptions in EBA 19/64, EBA 19/236, and
CBG 17/176. See PHD 1/194 and EBA 18/176 for further details.

TO: Rose E. Hill

FROM: John M. Lacey and Bessie S. Lacey

RECORD: St. Mary's County Land Record, Liber CBG 17, folio 176.

DATE: June 7, 1945.

NOTES: Transfer of land or fields north of the barns and outbuildings on the farm
being 50 acres. Same as JMM 6/372.

TO: Rose E. Hill

FROM: Daniel Webster Lacey and Virgie L. Lacey

RECORD: St. Mary's County Land Record, Liber EBA 19, folio 236.

DATE: September 1, 1920.

NOTES: Transfer of “Hayden Fair” and “Phil Key's Land,” being 26 acres, part of JFF
10/459. Price: $1000




SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’s County
8.2 Significance

TO: Rose E. Hill and King Henry Hill

FROM: Daniel W. Lacey and Virginia L. Lacey

RECORD: St. Mary's County Land Records, Liber EBA 19, folio 64.

DATE: March 19, 1920.

NOTES: Daniel W. Lacey and Virginia L. Lacey were tenants in common of “Hayden’s
Fair” and “Phil Key's Land” by virtue of the will of Robert L. Lacey.

TO: Rose E. Hill

FROM: Lottie C. Hall and Stephen Hall

RECORD: St. Mary’s County Land Records, Liber EBA 18, folio 176.

DATE: April 30, 1919

NOTES: Transfer of “Haydens Fair” and “Phil Keys” being 58 2/3 acres, the same as
JFF 10/459 less 50 acres devised to John M. Lacey. This tract being the same devised
to his wife Rose Emily Lacey during her life or widowhood and at her remarriage to his
children Lottie C. Lacey and Daniel Webster Lacey. Price: $1300

TO: Rose Emily Lacey

FROM: Robert L. Lacey

RECORD: St. Mary's County Testamentary Record, Liber PHD 1, folio 194.

DATE: May 23, 1905.

NOTES: “...the farm on which | now reside, with the exception of the land or fields
running from the road to Chaptico, with the fence as it now stands and north of the
barns and other outhouses on my farm to the lands of William Shuhart and adjoining
and south of the lands of John C. Reeves, said to contain about 50 acres.

TO: Robert L. Lacey and Mary E. Lacey

FROM: John F. Dent

RECORD: St. Mary’'s County Land Record, Liber JFF 10, folio 459.

DATE: June 23, 1888.

NOTES: Transfer of 108 84/100 acres as surveyed by George Dent in 1887. This
survey, on page 118 of Dent's Book B, describes the tract as “Robert L. Lacey's
purchase of Col. John F. Dent, beginning at a bound stone by the west side of the
Chaptico and St. Clement Bay Road and running with said road south 4 degrees 39
minutes east 119.92 perches to a post by the west side of said road, thence through
the field with a fence and through the timber south 82 1/4 degrees west 150.96
perches to a post on a ditch bank, thence with ditch bank north 20 degrees 5 minutes
west 93.44 perches to a post at the connection of two fences being a boundary of
Webster Hayden's land, thence with said land north 73 degrees 6 minutes east 179.96
perches to the beginning containing 108.84 acres.” Surveyed October 19, 1887.
Price: $1306.08




SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’s County
8.3 Significance

TO: John F. Dent

FROM: Richard P. Blakistone and Mary V. Blakistone

RECORD: St. Mary’s County Land Record, Liber JTB 3, folio 278.

DATE: July 19, 1859.

NOTES: Transfer of “Notley’s Addition,” “Hayden’s Fair,” and “Finchiey” being 522
acres. This land is platted in Benjamin Tippett’s Survey Book B on page 77. Laid
down in April 1859, the courses for “Notley’s Addition” and “Hayden'’s Fair” are on
page 55 of Tippett's book.




SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’s County
8.4 Significance

Plat of “Hayden’s Fair’ and adjacent lands from Benjamin Tippett Survey
Book B, page 77.
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SM-151, Robert L. Lacey House
St. Mary’s County
8.5 Significance

Courses for “Notley’s Addition,” and “Hayden’s Fair” from Benjamin
Tippett's Survey Book B, page 55. These courses describe the boundaries
of land as platted on page 77 of Tippett's Survey Book.
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S M. -151

GEORGE REEVES HOUSE

Clements

Private

Of frame construction. this 1%2-story struc
windows and a single exterior chimney.

early 19th century

rure has flat-roofed dormer




INSTR ELTIONS

SEE

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET

NOMINATION FORM
for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE

COMMON 2 -
(ree=n e 2o /e JNe1. . George B. Reeves House

AND/OR HISTORICY >

{2, LOCATION

STREET AND NUMBER:

Chaptico Hurry Road

CITY OR TOWN:

Chaptico

STATE COUNTY:

Maryland St. Mary's

ASS?FlCRTi‘QNf T i)
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
ow STATUS

(Check One) o o TO THE PUBLIC

{T] District (X Buiiding [J Public Public Acquisition: {7 Occupied Yes:

{7 Site O Structure Private {7 In Process L [J Restricted
{3 Object [0 Both [J Being Considered [J Preservotion work 5], e miihay

in progress |3 Ne

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

[J Agricultural {7] Government [ Pork [J Tronsportotion [J Comments
{1 Commerciol {7 Industriol [J Privote Residence {T] Other (Specity)

{7) Educotionol [ Militery [J Religious

[J Entertainment D Museum {7 Scientific

e

b4, OWNER OF PROPERTY

SWNER' S NAME:

G g e o . / 24 Q.

o
STREET AND 'NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:

RTHOUSE REGISTRY OF DEEDS ET :

St. Mary's County Courthouse

STREET AND NUMBER:

Washington Street and Courthouse Drive

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Leonardtown Maryland

Title Reference of Current Deed (Boqk & Pg. #);
| XISTING SURVEYS

TITLE OF SURVEY:

DATE OF SURVEY: [J Federol {T] Stote {7 County [J Local

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:

PS - 709




SM~15/

(Check One)
] Excellent [J Geod ] Fair {C] Deteriorated [ Ruins O -Unexposed
CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)
] Altered O Uncltered ] Moved ] Original Site
DESCRIBE THE PRESENT » 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
] 5 n
),‘ / Y 2 P -
‘ : ‘ /
AN

438

SNOITLONYLSNI




INSTRUCTIONS

S EE

SM-15)

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
] Pre-Columbion [ 16th Century
] 15th Century {1 17th Century

] 18th Century [ 20th Century

[ 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known)

Abor iginol [ Educotion
1 Prehistoric [ Engineering
[ Historic [ industry
] Agriculture [} Invention
[ Architecture [ Londscape
O Art Architecture
[0 Commerce [ Literature
[0 Communications [ Militory
[ Conservation O Music

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More ae Appropriate)

o eon =

Paliticol [OJ Urbon Plonning

Religion/Phi- O Other (Specity)
losophy

Science

Sculpture

Social/Humon-

itarion

Theoter

Tronsportotion

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
A

Ps =709



SMm-15/

BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

ICAL DATA (Y

LATITUOE AND LONGITUDE COOROINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUOE COOROINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY |0 OEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
GORNER LATITUOE LONGITUOE LATITUOE LONGITUOE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
Nw [-] ] » o » » [+] ] - o » »
NE (] » » o . »
SE (] » » o ’ »
SW [-] ] » (-] 1 »
APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATEO PROPERTY:
W
Y o G
‘Acreage Justification: m
]
| m
!
=
p 4
w
¢
-
A
=
(@]
-
—s
o
=z
w

NAME ANO TITLE:

LSsvnrre

ORGANIZATION OATE

STREET ANO NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

State Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National (] State [ Local [7]

Signature




,MM’ —n

o SM-151
o . Robert L. Lacey House
| % Chaptico Vicinity
Rock Point Quad

> 5

v NE
m,,,?f‘énf HALLS

"/:e/ﬁr\udi’\/kv ’
O asdeh L

oy e

T -
Py
Mariney Pt

——

.. Chaptic
N

\"1 : -
N
»a \\ N [
AN T
A N

ROCK POINT. MD.
38076-C7-T8-024

1843
PHOTOREVISED 18574
BATHYMETRY ADDED 19282
DMA 5660 IV SE-3ERIES VBE3










~

R
B b b
il‘xlm-il !

BLEL
















.




